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Questions and Answers

1. Is the Offeror required to provide qualifications and pricing for all six (6) of the services (all or nothing)?  Or can the Offeror submit a proposal for a single category (or less than the six) of work?

Answer:  The Offeror may propose to provide one (1) or multiple (any combination or all of the six (6)) professional services procured through the RFP for which they can demonstrate expertise and proficiency performing the professional service.

2. If the Offeror can submit a proposal for less than the six (6) services, are separate proposals required for each proposed service?  Or can the Offeror submit a single proposal, and include the pricing for the respective services?

Answer: The Offeror shall submit a separate proposal for each professional service the Offeror seeks to provide in Section III-1 of the RFP. 

3. Given that the RFP states that multiple awards will be granted, is there an exact number or range in the number of awarded contracts per service area?

Answer:  No, there is no predetermined number or range in the number of contracts awarded through this RFP.

4. Does the selection of awardees consider firms/teams that offer multiple services (preference) over a firm that submits qualifications in just a single category?

Answer:  All factors will be considered during the evaluation of proposals for each professional service.  There is no preference for an Offeror who proposes to provide multiple services, through separate proposals, over an Offeror who proposes to provide one professional service.  Contract awards will be in accordance with the evaluation criteria defined in the RFP and the Offeror’s demonstration of expertise and proficiency performing the proposed professional service in the most efficient and cost-effective manner.

5. After selection, does DEP intend to bid work scopes among the pre-selected providers and select the lowest priced work scope to award the work?

Answer:  No.  Once professional service providers have been procured, a defined scope of work will be assigned to a service provider as each project is developed.  Upon being assigned a defined scope of work, the service provider will prepare a work plan, cost estimate and schedule specific to the assigned scope of work.  Upon review, any discussion and approval of the work plan and associated schedule and cost estimate, a Notice to Proceed will be issued to the service provider to commence work associated with the approved work plan.

6. Regarding equipment, we anticipate the use of national and regional providers to rent the equipment necessary for the planned work.  Therefore, is leaving this pricing sheet blank acceptable as the rates for the equipment will vary but the costs will be shown in an assignment estimate and invoiced with no markup?

Answer:  Once the Department has awarded contracts to the highest qualified firms, it will evaluate the cost data submitted by the Offeror as part of its proposal as a basis for negotiating project-specific fees determined to be fair and reasonable to the Commonwealth.  Understanding the variability in rates and that scope-specific workplans and cost estimates will be developed for defined projects assigned to an awardee, the cost sheets are required to be completed to the Offeror’s best ability (e.g. use of ranges, qualifiers, notes for explanation, etc.).

7. Given the space allocation in the pricing worksheet, are Offerors able/encouraged to add other personnel categories to the rate sheet?

Answer:  Yes, as also stated on the Personnel Rate List, the classification list provided in the worksheet is a basic framework and not completely inclusive.  The Offeror is able and encouraged to include all potential position titles and associated tier levels the Offeror anticipates for completing the contract work per the specifications described in the RFP.

8. There is initial mention of encouraging veteran and/or small business participation.  Given the federal funding for this work, has VBE/DBE/WBE/SBE participation goals been established?

Answer:  No.  Veteran Business Enterprise (VBE), Small Diverse Business (SDB) or other participation goals have not been established for this solicitation.

9. Section III-2C states that the Offeror may make available “upon request” personnel resumes for each individual the Offeror is proposing.  The next paragraph states that, “Failure to submit professional resumes or other documentation of the personnel’s education and experience requirements will be reason for the rejection of the Offeror’s proposal.”  So, are resumes required in this proposal to demonstrate prior experience?  Resumes of all proposed staffing or just key staff?

Answer:  Yes, resumes are required to be submitted for all proposed staff to demonstrate prior experience.

10.  Are you looking for a team that can provide all services noted in the RFP or are you looking for firms to submit proposals for the individual tasks for which they qualify?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 4.

11.  Could we get more information regarding the requirements of the project status updates?  How often on a general project they will be required?

Answer:  The project status report is the documentation of all operational activities conducted to date, summary of any problems encountered during the given period and any mitigating solution(s) employed and recommendations moving forward which includes a narrative and task budget summary per the sample format provided in Appendix I of the RFP.  Projects will differ in complexity based upon the defined scope of work developed for the project, therefore the status reports will differ accordingly.  Given the variability of the scope of each project, the frequency that reports are submitted is identified as being on a weekly or monthly basis in the RFP.  The frequency of reporting will be determined through discussions between the Department and the contracted service provider in relation to each specific scope of work assigned to the service provider. The sample included within Appendix I is an example format containing required information to be submitted.

12.   Should the Daily Activity Report be a part of the required Project Status Updates?

Answer:  The Daily Activity Report (DAR) is the documentation of work progress and resources employed for work performed in the field.  Although the DAR and the Project Status Report (PSR) each document the progress of work and resources employed for the given time period, the DAR pertains mainly to field activities conducted and resources employed on a daily basis during the conducted activities. Whereas the PSR pertains to the overall project which includes both field and office work to advance the project to completion.  Although items reported within the DAR may also be included within and supplement the PSR, each are different reports covering different but associated time periods and some different subject matter, and therefore each are required per the specifications of the RFP. The sample included within Appendix G is an example format containing required information to be submitted. 

13.   We assume it is appropriate for a company to be an Offeror (prime bidder) and a subcontractor to a separate Offeror?  Please confirm.

Answer:  Yes, this is acceptable.

14.  Could the Department please provide clarity on the statement “satisfactorily performed work”?  While several pieces of this work could take significant time, it may be difficult to make a judgement on the performed work if the work is only partially completed.

Answer:  “Satisfactorily performed work” is associated with the particular defined scope of work assigned to a provider for a particular service in association with acceptable professional practice.  Given the variability of scopes of work assigned for various services and the degree of effort required for each, a designation of “satisfactorily performed work” is relative to the scope of work assigned, acceptable professional practice for each individual service and discussion resulting from continuous open communication between the Department and the service provider as associated with the project objectives.

15.  Regarding the Well Location Services description on page 12 of the RFP, are right-of-entry agreements to be formal signed agreements, or verbal approval to assess assets on the individual property?

Answer:  Yes, Right-of-Entry agreements are to be formal signed written agreements.  In the case of an emergency, a verbal approval may be obtained but the service provider must followed-up with the landowner to obtain a formal written agreement.

16.  Are bonding costs (as required per the contract) considered a direct reimbursable expense and billed back to the Commonwealth?  If not, is the expectation for this cost to be included in an overhead expense as a part of the multiplier?

Answer:  Upon the faithful performance of the contract in accordance with the plans, specifications and conditions of the contract and upon the prompt payment for all materials furnished or labor supplied or performed in the prosecution of the work, the performance bond and the payment bond, respectively, will be returned to the Offeror.

17.  Is there an expectation or requirement to have the value of the contract in liquid assets (cash)?  For example, if the awarded contract has an estimated value of one million, is there a requirement for the Contractor to have one million dollars in cash available?

Answer:  No, there is no such requirement.

18.  Can we submit a cost proposal for our future services to review our multiplier to confirm our calculations and documentation meet contract standards?  If so, do you have a standardized template you would like for us to use?

Answer:  Upon the development of a project with a defined scope of work, a contracted service provider will be assigned the defined scope of work for the development of a project-specific work plan, cost estimate and schedule.

19.   In Appendix G, it is stated that part of the conditions that the State can use a purchasing card (credit card) to pay for certain invoices and that no additional fee can be charged to cover the credit card fees incurred by using this method of payment.  Can this card be used to pay for any invoice, such as for direct reimbursable costs and subcontractor invoices?  Since there is no markup permitted on these items, the Contractor would lose money on these items if the payment card was used.  Are the credit card fees expected to be a part of the multiplier?

Answer:  The Department assumes you are referring to the Invoice Information and Example Format when referring to Appendix G.  Some errors had been identified in some of the Appendices posted on eMarketplace which have since been corrected through an addendum.  The corrected appendices include Appendix G (Daily Activity Report Format), Appendix H (Invoice Information and Example Format) and Appendix I (Project Status Report Format).  All work conducted under contracts developed under the DEP-IIJA-MPSC-1 solicitation is federally funded through the Infrastructure Investment Jobs Act (IIJA); service providers will be reimbursed with federal funds in accordance with the contract.

20.  Section 2.0 of Appendix G discussed PPE Charges and Other Direct Material costs.  Who determines how and what items are required to be on-site?  For example, PPE requirements.  These can vary greatly between worksites and the scope of work.

Answer:  The Department assumes you are referring to the Invoice Information and Example Format when referring to Appendix G .  The service provider, in consultation with the Department, will ultimately determine how and what items are required to be on site.  The development of the scope-specific workplan, cost estimate and schedule upon assignment of a project will ultimately determine potential equipment and materials necessary to complete the contract work which may change once site work has commenced depending upon what is encountered and the data derived throughout the work.  Open communication between the Department and the service provider throughout the contract work will better facilitate the determination of material and equipment needs for the project work and the protection of health and safety of site personnel.

The Department understands that PPE requirements can vary greatly between worksites and scopes of work and does not anticipate a required protection level greater than that offered by Level D PPE.  That being said, unknown circumstances can be encountered on a site which require additional controls and protections which the service provider will determine in consultation with the Department.

21.  What documentation would be required for company owned equipment usage to substantiate the cost charge?

Answer:  The equipment charge for equipment owned by the Offeror shall be the standard rate charged by the Offeror to a client for the completion of a client’s scope of work and the rate shall be included in the Cost Submittal Worksheet.

22.  According to 2 CFR 200, a financial audit may be required.  If awarded, we anticipate the portion of our contract to be less than $750,000.  Will an audit still be requested?  What will trigger the need for the audit, if anything?

Answer:  Audits and the factors which may trigger an audit are determined by the U.S. Department of the Interior (DOI).  Please note that as of October 1, 2024, the audit threshold under 2 CFR 200 is now $1,000,000.00.

23.   Since this contract is based on actual employee labor costs plus a multiplier, is there an exception to the 3% cost increase per year?  To attract and retain staff, our compensation adjustments each year typically exceed the 3%.  Would the expectation be for the Contractor to absorb any extra costs above 3% each year?

Answer:  Escalation of costs for annual contract renewal can be negotiated prior to execution of a contract with a service provider.  The Department does not expect the contractor to absorb any extra costs above the 3% figure used within the RFP. 

24.   Section I-5 says it’s a time and materials contract, and then it goes on to say that each project specific proposal shall contain a not to exceed price value.  Section III-7 says cost estimates will be either time and materials, fixed price or unit rates.  Can I-15 the selected offeror must perform 50% of the total project.  Does this include subcontractors?  Under the Well Site Investigation and Remediation Services, if a large dig and haul project were to occur, subcontract services could be more than 50% of the cost.

Answer:  The prime contractor responsibilities value of 50% is a Commonwealth standard value, which may be increased relative to the contract work performed.  The 50% of contract work to be performed by the Offeror is over the life of the total contract which will account for differences in projects and the associated labor requirements of the scoped projects.  It is not per work requisition.

25.  Is there an anticipated number of contracts to be awarded for each of the 6 service categories?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 3.

26.  Appendix J. A. All overtime must be authorized prior to such work being incurred.  How will this authorization be provided, verbal, email, written, etc., if approved?

Answer:  Overtime authorizations shall be documented through written means which include email communication.  Understanding that emergency situations and unforeseen occurrences on site may require immediate attention, verbal authorization for overtime is acceptable but still requires follow-up written documentation of the same authorization approved verbally.  

27.  Does PINDI cover these requirements for endangered species?  Wild Resource Conservation Act (32 P.S. §§ 5301-5314), 30 Pa. C.S. (relating to Fish and Boat Code), and 30 Pa. C.S. (relating to Game and Wildlife Code).

Answer:  Yes, utilization of PNDI will meet the initial consultation requirements for endangered species and critical habitat.  Surveys to prepare a biological assessment for species and critical habitat identified within PNDI relative to the limit of operations will be required accordingly.

28.  How much are we allowed to sub out?  In the technical submittal section, it asks for our experience performing wetland delineations, methane quantification, archaeological studies, aerial magnetic surveys and I didn’t see where it mentioned qualifications for subs.

Answer:  Section I-15 (Prime Contractor Responsibilities) states “The selected Offeror must perform at least 50% of the total contract with their own forces.”  Section III-2 (Qualifications) D (Subcontractors) states “The Offeror’s subcontractor information shall include (through a resume or similar document) the employees’ names, education and experience in the service(s) pursued by the Offeror and outlined in this RFP.”

29.  One task that we will need to assess project sites for the “least intrusive route” to access the site in regards to streams and wetlands.  If there isn’t already an access road and there are streams/wetlands in place that can’t be avoided, are we expected to just get GPs to cross?  Or if we are required to find the “least intrusive” access, will we be expected to coordinate access easements through other properties if they provide a less intrusive access?

Answer:  It is good professional practice when assessing access to a site for any operations to locate access that will impact the environment the least or the “least intrusive” route.  If streams/wetlands are encountered and cannot be avoided to access the site, the appropriate GP(s) described in 25 Pa. Code § 105 shall be obtained to cross the stream(s)/wetland(s) to access the site and complete the work.  Coordinating easements through other properties in order to avoid the stream/wetland may result in a larger impact or “more intrusive” route.

30.  Section I-3, Part 4 includes the implementation of an aerial magnetic survey utilizing Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS).  What is the Department’s stance on flying over sites that do not currently have an approved Right-of-Entry?

Answer:  Right-of-Entry agreements must be obtained from all property owners identified as within the limits of the aerial survey area.  If the service provider in conjunction with the Department are unable to secure Right-of Entry agreements from all involved property owners, the property(ies) where the owner(s) has not granted access through a signed written agreement shall be excluded from the survey area. 

31.  Section I-11 indicates that the proposal must be valid for 180 days or until a contract is fully executed.  Is this meant to indicate whichever is longer?  For example, if a contract has not been executed within 180 days, is it the Department’s expectation that the Offeror’s proposal is required to remain valid in perpetuity until a contract is fully executed?

Answer:  Yes, it is the Department’s expectation that an Offeror’s proposal remain valid until a contract is fully executed.  The period of 180 days and the time associated with “until a contract is executed” are anticipated to be similar.  The number of days was determined in consideration of the time required for the evaluation of the proposals and the processing of the contract.    

32.  Section II-1.C indicates that “All costs data for the proposal shall be submitted as its own electronic cost submittal file…”.  If an Offeror is submitting separate proposals for each professional service, should the cost file also be split into separate files that correspond to the proposals?  Or is it acceptable to send one comprehensive cost file that covers all of the professional services that an Offeror is submitting a proposal for.

Answer:  Yes, please see the answer to Question 2.

33.  Section II-2 indicates that “The five (5) Mandatory Responsiveness Requirements set forth in Section II-1 above (A-E)…”  However, Section II-1 only includes A-C.  Seeking verification that Section II-2 should only reference…”three (3) Mandatory Responsiveness Requirements set forth in Section II-1 above (A-C)…”

Answer:  Correct, Section II-2 should only reference three (3) mandatory requirements and NOT five (5).  The statement “The five (5) Mandatory Responsiveness Requirements…” in Section II-2 is incorrect and the result of an oversight during later stage revisions and should only contain three (3) Mandatory Responsiveness Requirements (A-C).

34.  Section III-1 indicates that “The Offeror shall submit a separate proposal for each professional service the Offeror seeks to provide.”  Is it the Department’s intention to award each professional service separately and utilize multiple Offerors for each plugging site that is to be awarded?  If an Offeror is awarded multiple services, will the Offeror always perform all awarded service for each plugging site?

Answer:  The Department intends to contract with multiple Offerors that sufficiently demonstrate expertise and proficiency performing one or more professional services in the most efficient and cost-effective manner.  The Department will assign project work to service providers procured through this RFP.  Each contract will be awarded in accordance with the criteria described in the RFP costs negotiated.  Project assignments will be made based upon the projects developed, service provider schedules and other logistical factors.  There is no minimum or guaranteed amount of work offered if the contract is entered between the Department and Offerors.

35.  Section III-5 – Work Plan indicates that the Offeror should “Indicate the number of person hours allocated to each task.”  This seems to indicate that the Offeror should estimate project hours prior to any detailed knowledge of the specific plugging sites.  Is this the case?

Answer:  This is a correct interpretation of the statement which is standard language within the template which primarily pertains to the defined scope(s) of work assigned to a contracted service provider as opposed to the response to the RFP, given that there currently are no defined projects to estimate these costs.  In accordance with the requirements stipulated within Section III-5 where applicable (i.e. per professional service) and Section III-7.A, the Department will provide a scope of work for each work requisition issued for professional services under the contract.  When the awardee is assigned a defined scope of work for a particular project, they will then prepare a scope/project-specific work plan, schedule and cost estimate.  Only the cost information stipulated in Appendix J (MPSC-1 Cost Submittal Worksheet) is required for proposals responding to this RFP.  The workbook contains worksheets for Personnel Rates, Equipment Rates (unit rates for equipment anticipated to be necessary given the general scope of the RFP) and a Material Rates (unit rates anticipated to be necessary given the general scope of the RFP.

36.  Section III-5 – Engineering Services – Surface Permitting and Control:  Tasks, Part 1.  Site Design and Control.  It is stated that “The Offeror shall prepare/construct the site for access by the well plugging operator…”  We are seeking clarification that the Offeror is responsible for construction, maintenance and restoration of the plugging sites.

Answer:  The Offeror responsibilities will be specified within the defined scope of work assigned to the contracted service provider which may vary between projects as defined in the RFP.  Some projects will require that the service provider be responsible for construction, maintenance and restoration, whereas some projects may carry additional or fewer responsibilities as will be defined in the project-specific scope of work assigned.   

37. Section III-5 – Well Site Investigation and Remediation Services: Tasks, Part 1. Project Design and Control.  It is stated that “…if the earth disturbance is 5,000 square feet or larger, the Offeror shall prepare and implement an E&S plan to protect…”  Is the E&S plan for remediation services separate and in addition to the E&S plan that is to be provided for well plugging under the Engineering Service – Surface Permitting and Control Systems?

Answer:  Not necessarily, provided the service provider for each service is the same for a project.  The details relative to E&S control for remediation services work may be incorporated into the same E&S plan document developed for well plugging operations under Engineering Services.

38.  Section III-5   Well Site Investigation and Remediation Services:  Tasks, Part 6 -  Well Site Investigation and Remediation Report.  Is it the Department’s intent that the report satisfies the requirements of Act 2?

Answer:  The full scope and requirements of Act 2 are not applicable to the work completed in association with the plugging of DEP Abandoned and DEP Orphan Wells, therefore the Department intends to utilize the Alternative Remediation approach defined in the Department document, Addressing Spills and Releases at Oil and Gas Well Sites or Access Roads dated September 21, 2013 (Document No. 800-5000-001).  The report requirements are defined within the RFP with additional clarification provided on a project-by-project basis through the assigned project-specific scope(s) of work.

39.  Are proposed team subcontractors who are Small Diverse Businesses (SDB) and Veteran Business Enterprises (VBE) required to hold certification through DGS?

Answer:  There are no SDB/VBE participation goals set for this solicitation, therefore the DGS certification requirement is not applicable.

40.  Will multiple awards be made for each of the six service categories?

Answer:  Yes, the Department intends to make multiple awards for each of the six (6) service categories, which will be dependent upon the overall response to the DEP-IIJA-MPSC-1 solicitation and subsequent evaluation of proposals and their alignment with the requirements and criteria defined in the RFP.

41.  Under RFP Section III-2, Item B, Offerors are instructed to provide descriptions of “at least five (5) projects, but no more than seven (7) projects associated with the service(s) the Offeror seeks to provide.”  Are we permitted to include projects from our team subcontractors to satisfy this requirement, or must these come only from the prime?

Answer:  Information required about subcontractors an Offeror intends to utilize for a specific service required for the contract work is described in Section III-2.D of the RFP.  If the Offeror’s general practice is to have a “member” of their “subcontractor team” perform specific services for contract work and it is their intention to use the same “subcontractor team member” to perform those services as associated with this RFP, then the subcontractor project(s)  descriptions are relevant to the proposal per the final paragraph in Section III-2B.   

42.  Section II-1 lists 3 Mandatory Responsiveness Requirements (A-C), however, Section II-2 states 5 Mandatory requirements (A-E).  Please clarify if there are 2 additional Mandatory Responsiveness Requirements.

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 33.

43.  Can an Offeror be a subcontractor to another Offeror?

Answer:   Please see answer to Question 13.

44.  Section III-3 states that there are no training requirements, but there is a green Offeror Response note.  Please clarify what response is expected.

Answer:  The response of Not Applicable will be sufficient.

45.  Are laboratory costs considered subcontractors? Are drillers considered subcontractors?

Answer:  The Commonwealth of PA, Department of General Services (DGS) Procurement Handbook defines contractors and subcontractors in Part I Chapter 2 (Definitions).  A contractor is defined as any person/entity that has entered into a contract with a Commonwealth agency.  A subcontractor is defined as an individual, business, university, governmental entity, or nonprofit organization contracting to perform part, or all, of another entity’s contract.

46.  For estimating person hours, should the estimate include hours for weekly or monthly Project Status Reports?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 35.  Once a defined scope has been assigned to a contracted service provider for the development of a scope defined project work plan, cost estimate and schedule, the preparation of the project status reports (frequency to be determined per project) and other required deliverables should be factored into the cost estimate and schedule.

47.  Regarding Site Investigation and Remediation Services, Section III-2D, states that a subcontracting plan must be submitted for all subcontractors.  However, given the list of potential contaminants, location of the project site to potential disposal facilities, market rate fees at disposal facilities, potential treatment options, types and quantities of wastes, trucking options etc., it would be extremely difficult to predict every possible subcontractor situation or combination.  Will there be an option to add subcontractors as situations dictate the need for subcontractors?

Answer: The Department understands the multitude of factors relevant to making these determinations and does not expect an Offeror to have all these answers without having a defined scope of work to guide the determination(s).  Given the general scope of the RFP and the intent of how it will function, to assign defined scope(s) of work to contracted service providers as the projects are developed, an Offeror that intends to use subcontractors to provide certain services shall include the associated information required by this RFP in their proposal.  As defined scopes of work are assigned, the service provider will develop associated work plans, cost estimates and schedules based on the defined scope which will be agreed upon by each party prior to commencing work. 

As situations dictate the need for subcontractors based on the specific defined scope of work, an Offeror shall provide that information within the required deliverables for each assignment for discussion with the Department prior to commencing work.  Yes, subcontractors may be added based on additional details of the defined scope of work assigned. 

48.  Section IV-1 states “Offerors should not make assumptions in their cost submittals”.  Section III-5 states “indicate the number of person hours allocated to each task”.  Is it permissible to make assumptions regarding the scope of work in the tasks in order to estimate the number of person hours for each task?  If not, is there a specific scope of work that can be provided?  Are ranges acceptable?  For example, under the Well Site Investigation and Remediation Services, it states “The Offeror may need to clear portions of a site of existing vegetation…”  Without knowing the scope of the vegetation removal, it would be impossible to estimate person hours.  It also states under that section that, “The magnitude of investigation and remediation activities is anticipated to differ on a site-by-site basis”, thus person hours unable to be estimated.

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 35.  Once a project is assigned to a contracted service provider, they will prepare a scope-specific work plan, cost estimate and schedule for discussion with the Department.  Person hours will be estimated at this time based on a defined scope assigned to a service provider and not within the proposal in response to this RFP.

49.  For the investigation and remediation cost submittal, will there be an opportunity to add equipment and materials given the unknown scopes of work, contaminants and quantities?  For example, the different combinations of remediation units such as waste profiles, tons, gallons, disposal rates, hauling distances, treatment chemicals, system components, etc. are almost limitless and will change over time and with respect to actual contaminants contained within the waste.

Answer:  Yes, similar to the answer to Question 48 and referenced Question 35, the Department understands that all required equipment and materials cannot be known without a defined scope of work, therefore a contracted service provider will address the need for additional equipment and materials within the workplan and cost estimate developed relative to the defined scope of work assigned for discussion with the Department and implementation once approved and a Notice to Proceed is issued.  

50.   Is there any intent to have the Offeror assist during the well selection process?

Answer:  There is nothing specified within the RFP for an Offeror to provide this service to the Department.  Although Department personnel will be developing projects for well plugging and each of the services described within this RFP, the Department is always open to receiving additional information and relevant input for consideration while developing projects.

51.  Reference:  19. INDEMNIFICATION

a.  Contractor Obligations.  The Contractor shall indemnify the Commonwealth against all third-party claims, suits, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses, including without limitation, litigation expenses, attorney’s fees. And liabilities, arising out of or in connection with any activities performed by the Contractor or its employees and agents that are related to this contract, as determined by the Commonwealth in its sole discretion.

As associated with the issuance of the RFP on eMarketplace, a number of our member firms have expressed some concern with the indemnification language in the terms and conditions.  The language as it is posted would require the consultant to indemnify third parties on their policy, however, insurance carriers for our firms have refused to issue a policy that covers third parties.  For larger firms, they can afford to pass on an uninsurable contract, but smaller firms can’t pass up the work and often end up signing the contract and hoping that no claims come to the project.  It’s a huge risk and ultimately ends up putting the owner at even more risk.  We’ve worked through this issue with DGS and PennDOT and they’ve both removed third-party indemnification from their contracts.  Is there a possibility that we could have a conversation about this project?  I know some of our firms have indicated that they will not pursue this work because of the indemnification language.

Answer:  Per Section III-8 (Objections and Additions to Standard Contract Terms and Conditions) Modifications to the terms and conditions contained in Part V will not be accepted. The Offeror shall not request changes to the other provisions of the RFP, nor shall the Offeror request to completely substitute its own terms and conditions.  Regardless of any objections set out in its proposal, the Offeror must submit its proposal, including the cost proposal, on the basis of the terms and conditions set out in Part V.  The Issuing Office will reject any proposal that is conditioned on the negotiation of the terms and conditions set out in Part V.

52.   Is there a required diversity spend?  Is diversity spend part of the overall evaluation?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 8.

53.  Can you clarify if the respondent is responsible for install of the environmental controls and inspection?

Answer:  The Offeror shall be responsible for implementing the approved work plan they developed upon being assigned a project.  Upon approval of the workplan and associated cost estimate, a Notice to Proceed will be issued to the Offeror to commence work as defined in the approved work plan.

54.   Section III-1:  “The Issuing Office will accept multiple proposals from a single Offeror intending to provide more than one of the professional services procured through this RFP.  The Offeror shall submit a separate proposal for each professional service the Offeror seeks to provide.”  If the Offeror is intending to submit on 4 of 6 services and subcontracting the remaining 2 services, are we to submit 6 separate proposals for each professional service?

Answer:  Yes, please see the answer to Question 2.

55.   Throughout the MPSC there are references to “federal funding” being used to establish well plugging activities.  National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) would be a component of the projects.  How is NEPA being addressed, and will the Offeror be responsible for NEPA Compliance?

Answer:  To date, the DOI Orphan Well Program Office (OWPO) has been receiving and reviewing Environmental Information Documentation (EID) packages prepared and submitted by the Department, and other states, which include relevant documentation associated with the Endangered Species Act (ESA) compliance reviews and the National Historic Preservation Act Chapter 106 documentation and approving the packages prior to the commencement of the proposed field operations. Also, as is apparent in the MPSC RFP, the Department is also procuring professional services specific to the ESA and NHPA requirements.  Ecological Services are being procured for expertise required to conduct the required survey(s) and work necessary to develop a biological assessment if endangered species and critical habitat are identified through the Pennsylvania Natural Diversity Inventory (PNDI).  Also, Historical and Archaeological services are being procured in the event that an archaeological investigation and/or other expertise is required to maintain compliance with the NHPA. 

56.  Under Engineering Services – Surface Permitting and Control, site preparation/construction – Is the Offeror required to provide all services or can it be design only?

Answer:  An Offeror may utilize subcontractors and shall identify by name any subcontractors they intend to use and the services they will perform.  For services that will be provided by subcontractors, provide the appropriate information requested in Section III-2D of the RFP.

57.   Are all orphan wells currently documented or is it expected that a vendor of choice will utilize documents, geospatial data, publicly available data, and field surveys to identify locations?

Answer:  There are currently a large number of DEP Abandoned and DEP Orphan Wells (each may meet the federal definition of orphan well) that have been documented to date.  It is anticipated that there are a significant number of these wells which still have not been documented within the Department’s database and therefore Well Location Services, as described in the RFP, is one (1) of the six (6) services being procured through this solicitation.

58.   For the electronic submission portion, would you accept a PDF formatted proposal?

Answer:  Yes

59.   We would like to confirm if there are any M/WBE or SDB/VBE goals.

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 8.

60.   The following language in Appendix J, Cost Submittal (CS) Worksheet Instructions.  4. Subcontractors:  The Issuing Office will reimburse the Offeror for the actual costs, without markup, charged by subcontractors for the services they perform for specific projects.  The Issuing Office will not reimburse the Offeror for the cost of subcontractors if they do not meet all applicable requirements of the prime contract and are not approved by the Issuing Office.

Referring to the above language, we are planning to provide a team approach to cover the entire range of scope items requested in the RFP.  Therefore, in our Technical Proposal we will include some subcontractors to cover some areas of specialization.  Is it accurate to state that there are no provisions to add a markup to subcontractors or are there provisions to allow a markup that may not be apparent in my reading of the RFP.

Answer:  Correct, there are no provisions to add a markup to subcontractors.

61.   The following language is provided in Appendix J, Cost Submittal (CS) Worksheet Instructions.  2.  Well Site Investigation and Remediation Services – Site investigation and remediation of historical impacts to soil, groundwater and surface water resulting from historic oil and gas development at the well site(s).  Well sites with identified impacts will require site investigation to delineate the extent of the identified contamination and remediation to remove the contaminated materials, which may be limited to interim measures depending on the extent of the impact, the media impacted and potential sensitive receptors in the vicinity.  The majority of the work is anticipated to initially be related to soil contamination and remediation.

Referring to the above scope of work for this item 2, would the agency also want any well investigations to be performed to determine conditions within a well in order to develop an appropriate remediation and plugging plan on a well-by-well basis?

Answer:  This is currently not a scope item within this Multiple Professional Services Contract (MPSC) RFP or the Well Plugging Services Contract (WPSC) RFP which will be published soon once the final review stages have been completed.

62.   Page 1 of the RFP, the fifth sentence reads “the use of this RFP form document is required unless approval to modify it is obtained from the Chief Procurement Officer of the Department of General Services.”  Does this mean Commonwealth only wants Offerors to respond in this form?

Answer:  No, this paragraph is a part of the RFP template and is relative to the development of the actual RFP document for publishing/posting only and does not apply to the Offeror or their response to this RFP.

63. The document mentions VBE and SDB participation as well as subcontracting.  Is there a mandatory subcontracting participation percentage? Are primes required to use subs only categorized as SDB or VBE?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 8.  There is no mandatory subcontracting participation percentage and primes are not required to use subs only categorized as SDB or VBE.  Although the use of VBE and SDB firms is always encouraged, the ultimate criteria for selection will not be based on their use.

64.  Page 15 of the RFP in Section I-11B.  Proposal Format.  Can the DEP confirm that each of the six service responses are to include the four separate electronic files that the RFP mentions:  (1) Tech submittal (Part III), (a) Completed Appendix B – Domestic Workforce Utilization Certification, (b) Completed Appendix C – Iran Free Procurement Certification Form and (4) Cost submittal (Part IV) for the specific service response?

Answer:  Correct.  Each proposal shall consist of four (4) separate files which include (1) Technical Submittal, (2) Domestic Workforce Utilization Certification, (3) Iran Free Procurement Certification Form and (4) Cost Submittal.

65.  Page 16 of the RFP in Section I-15 Prime Contractor Responsibilities.  It states Prime must perform at least fifty percent (50%) of the total contract work with their own forces.  Is there a mandatory requirement use of diversity sub?

Answer:  No.  Please see the answer to Question 8.

66.   Page 22 of the RFP in Section II-2.  Technical Non-Conforming Proposals.  The RFP states five (5) mandatory responsiveness requirements outlined in Section II-1 (A-E).  Section II-1 only has (A-C), where are the requirements D & E?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 33.  Both items D and E had been removed during late-stage revisions, and the section which still contained reference to D and E was inadvertently retained.

67.   Page 27 of the RFP in Part III – Technical Submittal.  Section III-1 through III-5 have an “Offeror Response” area.  Is this where the DEP requires Offerors to respond to all six services?

Answer:  Yes, this is the area intended for response to the preceding information for a particular service an Offeror seeks to provide.  If an Offeror intends to submit a proposal for all six (6) services or some subset of the six services, the Offeror is required to submit a separate proposal for each of the services they seek to provide.

68.  Page 56 of the RFP in Part III-6, Section K, Performance and Payment Bonds.  Is this mandatory for this contract?  The Terms and Conditions (Appendix K) do not reference Performance Bonds, but the RFP document does.

Answer:  Per Section III-6.K. of the RFP, performance and payment bonds are required per 62 Pa. C.S. § 903 (Contract Performance and Payment Bonds) of the Commonwealth Procurement Code (CPC) but only for those projects that will involve construction services.  

69.  Pages 56-57 of the RFP in Part III, Section L, Invoices.  Has the “Offeror Response” area.  Is this where the DEP requires Offerors to respond for all six services?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 67.

70.   Pages 57-60 of the RFP in III-7 through III-8 has the “Offeror Response” area.  Is this where the DEP requires Offerors to respond for all six services?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 67.

71.   Page 63 of the RFP for the Appendix A, Proposal Cover Sheet.  Under the electronic submittals enclosed box, it mentions SDB and VBE again.  Are primes required to use subs only categorized as SDB and VBE?

Answer:  No.  Please see the answer to Question 8.

72.  Can the DEP please confirm which Appendices are to be part of each service response?  Appendix B (Domestic Workforce Utilization Certification) is mentioned at the end of the RFP (DEP-IIJA-MPSC-1, Multiple Professional Services Contract) document, and Appendix C (Iran Free Procurement Certification).  Is it mandatory to submit Appendix D, E, and F with the bid response?

Answer:  Appendix B and Appendix C are required per the mandatory responsiveness requirements of the RFP.  Please see the answer to Question 64.  Appendix D (Trade Secret Confidential Propriety Information Notice Form) is only required if it is applicable per the contents of the RFP.  Appendix E (Lobbying Certification Form) is a requirement for use of federal funds and Appendix F (Federal Requirements) lists various federal requirements and is not a form to be completed and returned.

73.  Please confirm that Appendices G, H and I samples only for the Offerors.  Do they need to be submitted with the response?

Answer:  Correct, Appendix G (Daily Activity Report Format), Appendix H (Invoice Information and Example Format) and Appendix I (Project Status Report Format) are samples of an example format for reporting the required information.  These appendices are not required to be submitted with the Offeror’s response.

74.   Are there Small Diverse Business (SDB)/Veteran Business Enterprise (VBE) goals applied to this bid?

Answer:  No.  Please see the answer to Question 8.

75.   Appendix A, Proposal Cover Sheet, lists Small Diverse Business (SDB) Participation Submittal to be enclosed with the proposal submittal.  Is there an SDB participation goal or requirement?  And if so, is there a related participation form to be completed?

Answer:  No and No. Please see the answer to Question 8.

76.   Aerial Magnetic Survey – The use of UAS under federally funded projects must comply with the DOI Secretarial Order 3379 which is detailed in the DOI OWPO Phase 1 State Formula Grant Guidance (p.21) and for which a link is provided below.  Within this link “The laws and regulations that we use for Blue UAS only apply to the DoD, no one else in the Government (federal, state, or local) are held to these laws.  No one.  If someone says “you must use Blue” to sell, they are incorrect, or they have chosen that path of their own choice, independent of any other organizations.”  Is the intent of the of the requirement in the RFP to only allow sUAS equipment that is approved on the 2024 National Defense Authorization Act (American Made) and not specifically “Blue List”?

Answer:  Section X (DOI Standard Award Terms and Conditions) E. (Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS) Drones) of the Phase 1 State Formula Grant Guidance dated July 2023 states on page 21 “Pursuant to the DOI Secretarial Order 3379, only specific models of unmanned aircraft that have capabilities that are considered trusted and secure by the Department of Defense are authorized for use of Federal Funds under this award.”  The same is also included within the Phase 2 State Formula Grant Guidance under Section X.D on page 23.

77.   Does Appendix B – Domestic Workforce Utilization Form need to be submitted in hard copy?  Does any other portion of this response need to be submitted in hard copy format?

Answer:  There is no requirement for submitting anything in hard copy format.

78.   How many firms does DEP anticipate awarding contracts to for each of the six scopes of work (i.e. services)?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 3.

79. Will the Offeror’s efforts for the development of a site-specific Work Plan and cost estimate (following the assignment of a requisition) be reimbursed to a not-to-exceed threshold budget amount (i.e. similar to GTAC/IRRSC procedures)?

Answer:  Yes.

80.   Can DEP provide additional clarity on requested personnel qualifications for proposed subcontractors (Section III-2-D) for services such as waste transportation, and disposal, excavation, site preparation and restoration, vac truck services, and the like?

Answer:  Similar to the information required under Sections III-2B and III-2C and per Section III-2D, the Offeror’s subcontractor information shall include (through a resume or a similar document) the employee’s names, education and experience in the service(s) pursued by the Offeror and outlined in this RFP.  Information provided shall also indicate the responsibilities each individual will have in this Project(s) and how long each has been with the subcontractor’s company.

81. How will work be awarded?  For one site, would six awards be made, one for each of the 6 services?  How would that be managed?

Answer:  As projects are developed, a defined scope of work will be assigned to a contracted service provider for the development of a project-specific work plan, cost estimate and schedule.  Upon approval of these, a Notice to Proceed will be issued to the service provider to commence with the implementation of the work plan.  Not every site will require work from service providers for each of the six (6) services and each of the projects developed for a service provider may be completely different (i.e. wells or well sites included within the project) than other projects developed for other services, while some commonality will likely also exist between projects.  The projects will be managed per the approved work plan, specifications of the Notice to Proceed, and the contract Terms and Conditions.

82.   Will any additional consideration be made to Offerors that provide all six services in their submittal?

Answer:  Each proposal to provide a specific service will be evaluated against proposals received for that same service.  For example, all proposals received for Methane Emissions Monitoring and Quantification will be evaluated against all the proposals received for this same service and likewise for each of the additional five (5) services.

83.   How does the DEP intend to select a contractor for the work?  Will firms need to compete for a task order, or will it be the sole source?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 81.

84.  Will joint ventures be considered?

Answer:  All responsive proposals which meet the requirements of the RFP will be considered.

85.   Can the DEP confirm that at least five, but no more than seven, projects need to be submitted for each of the six service responses?

Answer:  Confirmed.  This is required for each of the six (6) services an Offeror proposes to provide.

86.   Due to the minimal time between receiving responses to questions and the deadline for proposal submittals, will the DEP consider revising the response deadline from April 14, 2025, to April 21, 2025?

Answer:  The Department believes that the determination of the duration of each phase of this solicitation has resulted in a fair and reasonable timeline for an Offeror to prepare and submit a proposal(s).

87.  The RFP format section states, “Except as noted, issuing agencies should use titles and text outside the brackets from this form document without change.  “However, we have not located any brackets in the RFP document.  Please identify what content is considered to be bracketed.

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 62.  The quoted excerpts pertain to the internal paper template used to draft the RFP document and they do not pertain to any requirements associated with an Offeror’s proposal(s).

88.  Does the Department require covers, cover letters, dividers and appendices (including financial statements) to be included in the total page count?  If so, must these pages also include page numbers?

Answer:  The proposal requirements are provided in Section I-11 (Proposal Requirements).  Subsections I-11A (Proposal Submission) and I-1B (Proposal Format) further define the requirements of proposals submitted in response to this RFP which must be met by each Offeror.  Subsection I-11A indicates that each proposal page should be numbered for ease of reference.

89.  The ZIP code for the Delivery Location on eMarketplace shows the ZIP code is 17101, the same as the ZIP code listed for sending proposals via UPS or FedEx on page v. of the RFP.  However, on the same page, the first part of the ZIP code for sending proposals via USPS is 17105, the same as the one in the address on page i.  Does the same address have two different ZIP codes dependent upon the delivery service used?  If not, please indicate the correct ZIP code that is to be used.

Answer:  The addresses and associated ZIP codes provided in the Calander of Events for delivery via USPS (ZIP code 17105) or via UPS/FedEx (ZIP code 17101) are correct and should be utilized in accordance with the delivery method.

90.  Regarding the virus scanning software identification requirement, would the Department accept a memo on letterhead identifying which software was used?  Otherwise, we’re unsure how to identify that information on the thumb drive.

Answer:  Yes.

91.  Please confirm that PDF is a Microsoft-compatible format for submitting technical proposals and that the Department is not requiring firms to submit the technical proposal response to the RFP in a Word format (we understand the cost submittal must be submitted in Excel).

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 58.  PDF is an acceptable format for submitting proposals.

92.   The RFP states, “The selected Offeror must perform at least fifty percent (50%) of the total contract with their own forces.”  In some instances, specifically with Well Site Investigation and Remediation Services, the RFP requires remediation services to remove contaminated materials.  It is possible that in some of these cases the remediation subcontractor brought in to remove and dispose of contaminated material may have costs that exceed 50% of the contract for that specific task order, mainly based on the extent of contaminated material encountered.  In this instance, will a waiver of the 50% threshold performance by the Offeror be allowed?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 24.  The 50% value is over the entire contract and not per work requisition.

93.   If a firm is requesting to be considered for more than one professional service and submits separate proposals for each, should a note be included in each proposal under the other services that we are submitting a separate proposal for that service?  In other words, we understand we must submit separate proposals for each service we are interested in, and we want to make sure we should only respond to that service (and not all) in each proposal.

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 2.  An Offeror may indicate that they are submitting separate proposals for other services being procured through the RFP, but it is not required.

94.   If we are proposing on more than one professional service, should we indicate on the cover, in the file name, and/or elsewhere which professional service the technical submittal is for?

Answer:  Proposals to provide services procured through this RFP should be clearly labeled so the contents are easily identified by the Department.

95.  Part II, II-2 references Section II-1 above (A-E). However, II-2 only has A-C.  Could the Department provide D and E, or should this reference be removed?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 33.  D and E should have been removed.

96.   Resumes are required under III-2C and III-2D.  Will the Department accept resumes for any proposed subs to be included only in 2D to avoid duplication?

Answer:  Section III-2D states “The Offeror’s subcontractor information shall include (through a resume or a similar document) the employees’ names, education and experience in the service(s) pursued by the Offeror and outlined in this RFP…”

97.   Can financial statements be included as appendices?  Must they include page numbers?

Answer:  Yes , financial statements can be included as appendices, and they must include page numbers

98.  Section III-5, Work Plan.  We are requested to indicate the number of person hours allocated to each task.  However, since this is an on-call contract, we don’t know what tasks will be assigned.  What information would satisfy this requirement?

Answer:  Please see the answers to Questions 35 and 48.

99. Appendix A looks to require a Small Diverse Business Participation Submittal and a Veteran Business Enterprise Participation Submittal; however, these are not required as outlined under the Proposal Format Section.  Please clarify.

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 8.

100. Appendix A does not look to include Appendix C (Iran Free Procurement Certification Form) as required, but Appendix C is listed as required under the Proposal Format section.  Please clarify which documents should be included in the electronic submittal for each professional service.

Answer:  Section I-11B indicates that the Iran Free Procurement Certification Form (Appendix C) is required to be submitted.  The RFP indicates which documents should be included in the electronic submittal for each professional service.

101. [bookmark: _Hlk193459225]Appendix F, Federal Requirements, dated October 2024, outlines the requirements associated with using federal funds.  However, with the start of the Trump administration, two executive orders, Ending Illegal Discrimination and Restoring Merit-Based Opportunity and Ending Radical and Wasteful Government DEI Programs and Preferencing, were issued that seem to impact requirements pertaining to the contract as specified in Appendix F dated 2024.  Additionally, a recent ruling by a federal court in Maryland temporarily blocked key portions of these Executive Orders.  Recognizing this is a rapidly evolving situation, what Federal Requirements should be used when responding to this RFP – the ones in Appendix F, dated October 2024, or an updated version that takes into account the changes resulting from the January 2025 Executive Orders?

Answer:  Appendix F (Federal Requirements) dated October 2024 is the most up to date version which are relevant to the work being procured through this RFP.  The regulation at 41 C.F.R. § 60–1.4, effective January 11, 2016, explicitly states that contractors must comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246, including the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

102. Will the contractor be included as part of this application or secured under separate contract?

Answer:  Section III-2C that an Offeror “identify by name any subcontractors you intend to use and the services they will perform.  For services that will be provided using subcontractors, provide the appropriate information in Section III-2D.

103. Should we include survey-grade topographic and/or boundary surveys within the scope or base our designs on publicly available LiDAR data?

Answer:  The scope of the RFP is general in nature given that it is intended to cover a range of potential scopes of work as projects are developed.  The Offeror should propose services and associated deliverables which may be applicable to this potential range requiring various levels of detail.  Contracted service providers will be assigned a defined scope of work upon project development for which they will be prepare an associated work plan, cost estimate and schedule for discussion and approval by the Department.

104. Under what professional service will the Right of Entry be established?  Who will coordinate the right of entry for each professional service?  Is it the state’s intent to have one point of contact for securing the right of entry across all six professional services?

Answer:  The Department has been securing Right-of Entry access agreements from landowners in association with developing well plugging projects and will continue to do so.  Access relative to the professional services will utilize these access agreements as they apply to the work the service provider is performing under the contract.  If additional access is required (i.e. remediation of contaminated materials), the Department will work with the service provider to secure the additional agreements.  The one exception to this is associated with the aerial magnetic survey associated with the well location services where the service provider will secure Right-of Entry agreements, as detailed in the RFP, from landowners for access to complete the survey.

105. Is there a minimum tolerance survey error on well locations?

Answer:  The expertise of the Offeror will determine the various thresholds and relevant operating parameters for instrumentation utilized to complete the work as associated with the defined scope of work.

106. Are any potential project areas expected to be within controlled airspace?  If so, does DEP need any documentation for LAANC approval?

Answer:  At this time, it is not known what areas will be targeted for a survey, although the potential may exist for a project area to be within controlled airspace.  Regardless of whether the work is conducted within controlled airspace or not, the Department is bound to follow all applicable federal, state and local laws and guidelines associated with UAS surveys and any required documentation and/or deliverables.

107. How does DEP want us to provide our survey data, and in what coordinate system?

Answer:  The presentation of survey data and the coordinate system used may vary between services and/or projects and will be addressed on a project-specific basis upon assignment of a detailed scope of work.  The Offeror should provide all their capabilities within a proposal submitted for any of the services.

108. Will an electronic geodatabase submission be submitted to DEP after flight areas are completed? Will DEP provide the format for the necessary fields?

Answer:  The general and required project deliverables are described for each service in Part III of the RFP.  Any additional details will be discussed between the Department and the contracted service provider upon assignment of a project-specific scope of work for development of a work plan and associated cost estimate and schedule.

109. Task #5 “Ground Truthing Investigation and Site Assessment”.  Will ground magnetometer responses be part of the reporting?

Answer:  If ground magnetometer responses are part of the Offeror’s proposed methods to deliver the particular service, then it will also be part of the reporting.

110. Task #5 “Ground Truthing Investigation and Site Assessment”.  Is the expectation to hand dig to a certain depth at anomalies?  If so, what are the expectations if excavation is terminated prior to daylighting well casing?  Further excavation expected beyond hand tools?

Answer:  The depth of hand digging will be based upon the data collected prior to commencing.  If an excavation is terminated prior to identifying or “daylighting” well casing, the reasons for termination shall be fully documented based upon the data available at the time.  Excavation beyond that with hand tools is not anticipated at this time but may be open to discussion should it be beneficial.

111. Task #5. “Ground Truthing Investigation and Site Assessment”.  Are there existing risk assessment categories for anomalies?

Answer:  The referenced section above in Part III-5, Well Location Services, Task No. 5 – Ground Truthing Investigation and Site Assessment describes the items to be identified and assessed at the site of the anomaly/suspected well.

112. Task #6 “Responsible Party Research and Determination”.  How far back in time should the ownership research be performed?

Answer:  The research shall be performed, at a minimum, in accordance with acceptable standards of the professional practice.

113. Task #9. “Well Documentation Report”.  Will data deliverables follow a specific PADEP structure (Issuing Office/Federal Standards) – existing field forms, exhibit templates, etc.?

Answer:  The information required is detailed in the referenced section of the RFP in accordance with acceptable professional practice.  The format of the report will be determined by the Offeror through discussion(s)with the Department.

114. Does DEP anticipate multiple well projects being completed simultaneously?

Answer:  The potential exists for multiple well projects being completed simultaneously.

115. What environmental issues/mitigations are expected for the archaeology at these sites?

Answer:  It is anticipated that archaeological services will be necessary to complete any required archaeological investigations and/or a historic preservation specialist analysis in the event that anything of potential concern is identified within the area of potential of effect (APE).

116. With the potential amount of construction and associated costs it may be difficult for the prime consultant to achieve 50% of the overall contract if construction is included.  Will construction activities be included in the calculations of total contract cost?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 24.

117. If the prime contractor is an A/E consultant, will they be required to address the bonding or is that to be addressed by the construction contractor for construction activities?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 68.

118. Can specialty subconsultants be added during work order assignments if needed?  For example, T&E survey specialist may not be known until after the initial PNDI coordination.

Answer:  Yes.

119. Is a qualification package required to include design and construction services or could a submission be made for only design services or only construction services?

Answer:  A qualification package is required for each service the Offeror proposes to provide.

120. Does PADEP envision the contract holder to be an A/E consulting firm or a construction contractor?

Answer:  The Department intends to contract with multiple Offerors that sufficiently demonstrate expertise and proficiency performing one or more services in the most efficient and cost-effective manner.

121. Is federal grant funding confirmed for this program?

Answer:  Yes

122. Regarding Cost Submittal Worksheets – If a piece of equipment or material is necessary but was not included in the worksheet submittal, is there a process for adding a rate?

Answer:  The Offeror should, to the best of their efforts, provide anticipated rates for equipment and materials given the general scope of the RFP.  Understanding the general scope of the RFP and that a project-specific scope of work will be assigned to a contracted service provider for the development of a scope-specific work plan and associated cost estimate, equipment and/or materials determined to be necessary for the scope-specific workplan, although not included within the proposal Cost Submittal Worksheet, may be added and discussed with the Department at this stage of the contracted work. 

123. Is it permissible to use an Offeror for one task as a subcontractor for another tasks?  Example – Firm X proposed on Task 1, Can Firm X be a sub to Firm Y for another task?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 13.

124. Does the PADEP have an estimated timeframe for the award date?

Answer:  The Calendar of Events (page v. of RFP) and information in Section I-11A of the RFP is the general timeframe within which the Department is working to award contracts and commence work. 

125. Does PADEP have an estimated number of wells to be addressed under this contract?

Answer:  No

126. Does PADEP have an estimate of the total amount of work to be awarded over the contracting period?

Answer:  There is no minimum or guaranteed amount of work offered if the contract is entered between the Department and the Offeror(s).

127. Once the Offerors are selected and a contract award is completed, is additional bidding for specific projects required or could it be required?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 5.

128. Is there a preferred virus scanning software that should be used for the USB flash drive?

Answer:  No.  Please see the answer to Question 90.

129. In Part I-11B, Proposal Format, PADEP mentions that additional information can be provided in a proposal appendix.  Is there a page limit to this appendix?

Answer:  No

130. In Part II-2 there is a mention of 5 mandatory criteria in Part II-1 (A-E); however, only 3 mandatory criteria are listed (A-C).  Are there two other Mandatory criteria that were omitted?

Answer:  No.  Please see the answer to Question 33.

131. Is the performance bond on a project-by-project basis, or the entire contract?

Answer:  Yes, the bonds will be determined on a project-by-project basis per 62 Pa. C.S. § 903 (Contract Performance and Payment Bonds).  Please note that the contracts awarded pursuant to this RFP are largely for professional services and not construction services.  Therefore, the bonding requirements of Chapter 9 of the Commonwealth Procurement Code will only apply to those projects where construction services are performed. 

132. Is there a word limit or page limit for the Offeror’s response to Part III components?

Answer:  No, there are no word or page limits associated with the Offeror’s response.

133. Is there a page limit for project descriptions?

Answer:  No

134. Is there a page limit for personnel resumes?

Answer:  No

135. Can PADEP clarify if the Offeror will obtain site access for each project location or for properties where additional research for undocumented wells may occur?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 104.

136. Can PADEP clarify if the Offeror will have to name the property owners as additionally insured on the certificate of insurance?

Answer: There is no requirement for the Offeror to name property owners as additionally insured on the certificate of insurance when construction services are not being performed.	Comment by Parry, John: Melissa, although I have seen the property owners named as additionally insured on the well plugging IFBs from the initial grant phase work and the two well plugging IFBs posted in association with the FG phase 1 work, I did not see anything in the 2016 DEP Conditions for Construction Contracts document currently being updated, the 2022 DGS Conditions for Construction Contracts document or the MPSC RFP Terms and Conditions, unless I missed it.

Each document states that the Commonwealth shall be named but no mention of property owners therefore the reason for the answer I drafted.

I assume the reason for the insurance would be in case of damage of some sort to person or property whether it be a property owner, passerby or some other incident, therefore the property owner, given certain determination, would be addressed and not need be named?

Looking for your expertise and insight here.  Thanks!

137. If access is to be obtained by the Offeror, will this work be completed as time and material effort?

Answer:  Yes

138. Considering safety protocols and potential remote work locations, does PADEP anticipate that at least two personnel will be used for most tasks (“buddy system”)?

Answer:  The Offeror should have standard safety protocol in place which they follow for the professional services they provide to clients for the protection of health, safety and the environment.  The Department supports a safe work environment and the Offeror’s protocols for maintaining a safe work environment in accordance with standard professional practice.

139. In Appendix J, the Cost Submittal Instructions tab, item #4, PADEP states that the Offeror will be reimbursed for subcontractor expenses without markup.  Can you clarify if this applies to items on the subcontractor invoices that are “marked-up”, or the entire subcontractor invoice?

Answer:  The statement applies to the markup of costs by the prime contractor to the invoice a subcontractor has submitted to the prime for the services rendered by the subcontractor for the prime contractor as associated with the contract work. 

140. In Appendix J, the Cost Submittal Instruction tab item #4 states that the Offeror should provide a means to verify, measure and invoice subcontracted services.  Can PADEP provide an example of acceptable subcontractor verification?

Answer:  This is an internal process utilized by the Offeror to track and invoice subcontractor work for any project work. 

141. Will any sort of hazardous waste investigation be required at the site?  If so, what type?  Phase III ESA with waste limit delineations?

Answer:  The Department does not anticipate any hazardous waste investigations being required, although impacted materials removed from the site will require a waste classification for disposal purposes.  If information, data and materials encountered on a site indicate the necessity for such an investigation, it will be handled under a separate scope of work.

142. Will a CE document or similar be required for Chapter 105 clearance?

Answer:  The documentation required to obtain a general permit for wetland and waterway encroachments is provided in 25 Pa. Code § 105.

143. For Chapter 105 Surface Permitting Wetlands and Waterway Encroachments – is a general permit (GP) anticipated or is a Joint Permit Application (JPA) anticipated?

Answer:  It is anticipated that a general permit (GP) will be sufficient in the majority of cases to complete the contract work, although the potential exists for a site with certain characteristics may require a Joint Permit Application (JPA).

144. Is this RFP for all services or can it be just for #4 Well Location Services?  

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 1.

145. As a part of Engineering Services, please confirm that DEP will accept proposals for the following scope of work:

a.  Completion and submission of the following applications and forms on behalf of DEP:

i  5500-PM-OGO008
ii 8000-FM-OOGM005/5a/6
iii 8000-PM-OOGM0024
iv 8000-PM-OOGM0002
v  8000-PM-OOGM-0077
vi 8000-PM-OOGM0050

Answer:  The engineering services being procured through this RFP are associated with project compliance with surface permitting requirements (i.e. wetlands and encroachments per 25 Pa. Code § 105 and potentially those associated with 25 Pa. Code § 102), the preparation and implementation of a site-specific erosion and sedimentation (E&S) control plan(s) to control accelerated erosion and sedimentation, site preparation/construction, site inspections and maintenance of employed Best Management Practice (BMP) and well site restoration.

b. Prime Contractor responsibilities on behalf of DEP for plug and abandonment operations (Operations planning and logistics, P&A contractor oversight, HSE Management Systems implementation, daily engineering reports, operations management, etc.).

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 145a.

c. Risk mitigation planning for P&A activities on behalf of DEP (well integrity testing, emergency response plans, blowout prevention plans, fire and explosion prevention plans, etc.).

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 145a.

146. Our first of three questions is for clarification on the link in the RFP titled Important update on Secretary’s Order 3379 and Blue Small Unmanned Aircraft Systems (doi.gov) which references a memorandum from October 6, 2020.  Could PADEP confirm that Secretarial Order No. 3379 dated January 29, 2020, is the correct original document that the update is amending and is the document that the Offeror should be referencing?

Answer:  Yes, this is the correct document.  The Department is not aware of any other official documents that currently would supersede the Secretarial Order.  Please see link for clarification; S.O. 3379 - Temporary Cessation of Non-Emergency Unmanned Aircraft Systems Fleet Operations | U.S. Department of the Interior. 

147. Second of three questions:  The Formula Grant Guidance from the DOI was updated in July 2023 indirectly references the relief mechanism cited in Secretarial Order 3379 regarding the Assistant Secretary-Policy, Management and Budget (AS-PMB)’s ability to approve any deviations or waivers. We are seeking clarification on whether the PADEP will facilitate the deviation and or waiver request from the Offeror to the DOI AS-PMB.

Answer:  There is no relief mechanism cited in Secretarial Order No. 3379 associated with any waiver of the requirements of the Order.  The waivers in Part II of Attachment C (Buy America Preference for DOI) of the Phase 1 State Formula Grant Guidance (July 2023) do not pertain to UAS. 

148. The third question is related to clarification regarding the evolving Blue List.  Will PADEP seek DOI AS-PMB guidance regarding relief of utilizing “legacy” Blue Listed aircraft that were not eliminated from the Blue List due to cyber-security or supply chain concerns?

Answer:  Please see the answer to Question 76.  “Legacy Blue Listed aircraft that were not eliminated from the Blue List due to cyber-security or supply chain concerns” would intuitively still be approved UAS given they remain on the list. 
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